
 
Telephone Enquiries:  Democratic Services (01254) 380109 
Email: michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk  
Published on: Tuesday 13th March 2018 

Page 1 of 1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Planning (Trees)  
Sub-Committee 
 
Wednesday, 21st March, 2018 at 11.45 am, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Melissa Fisher 
 
Councillors Judith Addison, Loraine Cox, Stewart Eaves and Eamonn Higgins 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2   Terms of Reference  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
To submit the Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee Terms of Reference which were 
established at full council on the 21st September 2017. 
 
Recommended - That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
  
 

3   Town and Country Planning Act 1990- New Tree Preservation Order  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
The attached report sets out the issues surrounding the Tree Preservation Order  
relating to the Sycamore Tree at 27 Queen Elizabeth Crescent, Accrington. 
 
Recommended - That the application be determined as set out in the  

report. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING (TREES) SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

MEMBERSHIP:           5 councillors (who must be members of the Planning Committee) 

REPORTS TO:            full Council 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 

1. To exercise all the powers and duties conferred on the Council by Part VIII Chapter 1 
(sections 197 – 214D of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and 
the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 and 
any replacement or amending legislation or regulations.  

2. Without prejudice to the generality of the forgoing, to make and confirm tree 
preservation orders, to determine objections to the making of tree preservation 
orders, to revoke or vary tree preservation orders and to grant consent for the felling 
or the carrying out of work to any trees or woodlands protected by a tree preservation 
order or which are located in a conservation area. 

3. To exercise all powers and duties conferred on the Council by the Hedgerows 
Regulations 1997 and Part 8 (sections 65 – 84) Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 (High 
Hedges). 

4. To authorise an officer or other suitably qualified and / or experienced person to 
exercise any functions of the Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

REPORT TO: 

 

Trees Sub Committee 

DATE: 

 

21 March 2018 

PORTFOLIO: 

 

Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

Katy Morley, Arboricultural and Conservation Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: New Tree Preservation Order – Rear 27 Queen 

Elizabeth Crescent, Accrington, BB5 2AS 

   

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of notice:  

 

  

1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 To consider the issues surrounding the Tree Preservation Order relating to the Sycamore 

Tree at 27 Queen Elizabeth Crescent and to determine: 

 

i. Whether the temporary TPO that has been placed on the tree should be made 

permanent.   

 

1.2 Local authorities should make decisions relating to Tree Preservation Orders in an open and 

transparent way.  There are differences in opinion in relation to this tree and taking the 

decision through the Trees Sub Committee seeks to ensure that the authority can be seen to 

be reaching its decision on this tree in an even handed and open manner.   

 

2. Background 

 

The Tree Preservation Order 

 

2.1 In 1952 it is understood that a Tree Preservation Order was made for a number of woodland 

areas across East Accrington. 

 

2.2 The Tree Preservation Order is titled as follows: 

 Lancashire County Council 

 (Municipal Borough of Hyndburn) 

 Tree Preservation Order 1952 No 7 

 

2.3 The tree that is the subject of the temporary TPO is within an area designated as a woodland 

TPO “W3” and the woodland was originally around the property known as Bank House on 

Sandy Lane.   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

2.4 Tree Preservation Order 1952 No 7 covers a large area of east Accrington, both urban and 

rural and serves to protect 130 individual trees, 5 groups of trees and 20 woodlands.  W3 

(Woodland 3) is described in the order as “A stand of mixed hardwood consisting of elm, 

beech, oak, sycamore, lime and horse chestnut.”  The tree that is the subject of this report is 

a Sycamore.   

 

2.5 Although the Council has two copies of the TPO text and maps, neither of these includes the 

final sealed document and this is needed to confirm the presence of the TPO.  An explanation 

of the absence of this document is set out at paragraph 2.13.   

 

 The Applications 

 

2.6 In April 2017, the owners of the property (27 Queen Elizabeth Crescent) submitted a planning 

application (ref 11/17/0153) for the demolition of the existing rear conservatory and the 

erection of a single storey rear extension.  The submitted application form indicated that no 

trees would need to be felled as part of the proposed development and that there were no 

trees within falling distance of the proposed development.  The tree was not shown on any of 

the submitted plans.  Planning permission was granted subject to conditions.   

 

2.7 In June 2017, an application was submitted (ref 11/17/0263) to fell the Sycamore tree in the 

rear garden of 27 Queen Elizabeth Crescent.  The application was required because the tree 

was protected by a Tree Preservation Order that was made in 1952 and which covered a 

woodland area.  The application sought permission to fell the tree for the following reasons: 

1. The tree was causing damage to property; 

2. The tree has low amenity value; 

3. The tree presents a health and safety risk due to trips and slips on paving; 

4. The tree causes excessive shading and limits light into new extension; 

5. It is intended to plant two new trees to replace that being felled; 

6. Home insurance premium is increased due to height of tree; 

7. An aborist (Cornthwaites Tree Care) has advised that the tree was causing damage 

to the property and that it should be removed.   

8. Works will damage roots and kill the tree anyway.   

 

2.8 The application was refused for the following reasons: 

1.  A lack of any deadwood in the crown indicating that the tree is not currently suffering 

from any significant disease or root stress’. 

2.  There are no signs of decay or fungus & no sign of root plate movement to indicate 

instability on inspection. 

3.  The Council inspected the tree and at the time of inspection it appeared in a good 

condition. 

4.  Hard standing laid beneath the tree must fully comply with BS5837:2012 Trees in 

relation to design, demolition & construction - Recommendations 

5.  As with all trees it is recommended that regular (about every 3-4 years) inspections 

are carried out at different times of the year. 

 

Page 6



3 
 

2.9 In determining the application (ref 11/17/0263), the site was visited by the Council’s Building 

Control Surveyor who was satisfied that the proposed extension could be developed without 

being undermined or adversely affected by the tree.   

 

2.10 Shortly after the refusal of application ref 11/17/0263, a further application was submitted to fell 

the tree (ref 11/17/0366).  This application was supported by further information submitted by a 

Tree Consultant (David Peake, professionally qualified arborist) and the application form 

stated: 

1. That in relation to the condition of the tree, it was not diseased and there was no risk 

of it falling.   

2. That the tree was not giving rise to damage to property by virtue of subsidence or 

other structural damage to property.   

 

However, a lengthy statement was submitted in support of the applicant by the Tree Consultant 

that was working on their behalf.  This raised a number of issues:   

 

2.11 The second application to fell the tree (ref 11/17/0366) was also refused for the following 

reasons: 

 

 Damage to Property 

 There was no evidence to support the assertion that the tree had caused significant damage to 

property.  It is considered that the pushing up of flags on the lower patio and the loose 

brickwork on the retaining wall can be easily rectified by more appropriate ground covering.  

Furthermore, it is believed that the present condition of the patio is as much to do with its age 

and the original poor construction.   

 

 Low Amenity Value 

 The Council considers that the tree is of significant size and location that can be viewed from 

Sandy Lane and the surrounding area and therefore it has high amenity value and its absence 

would have a significant detrimental impact on the neighbouring area.   

 

 Health & Safety 

 The Council considers that when inspected last, the tree was in a good condition, as 

mentioned before, there is no reason to suspect that there is any danger from this tree that 

poses a health and safety risk.  The loose patio slabs, slippery leaves and moss growth are a 

natural occurrence, debris and moss would still occur without the presence of the tree as the 

area is close to the woods.   

 

While slips and trips are to be expected in a garden environment the Council believes that 

suitable ground covering can be provided that will minimise the risk of slipping while at the 

same time will not cause harm to the tree.   

 

 

 

 

Page 7



4 
 

Excessive Shading 

 

The area was in sunlight when officers visited the site, with a good mix of shrubs growing well, 

it is considered that the shading is not excessive and normal garden activities could be enjoyed 

with the tree in place.  The Council would consider an application to lightly prune the tree as 

has been done in the past.   

 

 House Insurance Premium 

 

 An increase of premiums is in the Council’s opinion not a material consideration when 

determining if the tree can be felled.  It is the land owners’ responsibility to be adequately 

insured and there are insurance companies that can provide the necessary cover.   

 

2.12 Following refusal of this application the applicant appealed the decision.   

 

 The status of the Tree Preservation Order 

 

2.13 As part of the appeal process, the Planning Inspectorate requested details of the Tree 

Preservation Order, including the final signed document.  Whilst documentation relating to the 

Tree Preservation Order could be found, a copy of the signed order could not be located.  The 

reason for this is that the original order was made by Lancashire County Council in 1952, 

before Hyndburn was in existence, and although the archives at County Hall were searched 

the record could not be located.   

 

2.14 In response to this, the Planning Inspectorate suggested that the Council place a new Tree 

Preservation Order (TPO) on the tree and have further advised that they would not consider 

the appeal until a permanent TPO is in place.  In the light of the uncertainty around the status 

of the TPO, officers believed that it was expedient to serve a temporary TPO as a means of 

securing the protection of the tree in the short term.  The temporary TPO expires in June 2018.   

 

2.15 In making the temporary TPO, the Council consulted the owner of the property and 

neighbouring properties.  The consultation responses are set out in section 3 of this report.   

 

2.16 the applicants have recently moved into the property and should have been made aware by 

their solicitor that part of their property was subject to a Tree Preservation Order at the time the 

property was purchased.   

 

3. Objections / representations 

 

3.1 The authority must consult on proposed TPO’s and in making the order it must take into 

consideration any objections that are made in response.  Objections can be made in relation to 

any matter.  The following points of objection have been received from the applicant and two 

neighbouring properties in relation to the temporary TPO: 

 

 The tree is too big for the garden 

Page 8



5 
 

 Limited daylight in the house. 

 Grass under the tree is unable to grow due to lack of light 

 Leaves falling blocking gutters & drains, killing grass, causing moss to grow  

 Shading garden making it unusable in the summer months, cannot grow anything 

 Tree roots causing a trip hazard in garden 

 Seedlings growing every where 

 Sticky sap falling on garden paths making them slippery and garden furniture 

 The tree is a rogue tree as it is a different type of tree and not part of the woodland 

 The tree would not be missed if removed no public amenity 

 Tree close to the new pilings which might make it unsafe 

 No other trees in the back gardens just theirs 

 Woodland TPO’s should not cover trees in gardens  

 Tree is very close to their new extension which it now overpowers reducing light. 

 Planning permission was granted without the officer consulting the tree officer 

 Their Arborist has done a BSC report which results that felling the tree would be the 

safest option.   

 

4. Policy Considerations 

 

4.1 The National Planning Practice Guidance sets out the matters that should be taken into 

consideration when determining whether a tree should be protected.   

 

4.2 Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to them to be 

‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or 

woodlands in their area‘.  ‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise 

judgment when deciding whether it is within their powers to make an Order.   

 

4.3 Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a 

significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before 

authorities make or confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection would bring a 

reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future.  

 

4.4 When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are advised to 

develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way, 

taking into account the following criteria:  

 

Visibility 

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the authority’s 

assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant.  The trees, or at least 

part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or footpath, or 

accessible by the public. 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/regulation/3/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/section/198
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/section/198


6 
 

Individual, collective and wider impact  

Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order.  The authority is advised to also 

assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands by 

reference to its or their characteristics including: 

 size and form; 

 future potential as an amenity; 

 rarity, cultural or historic value; 

 contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and 

 contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area. 

 

 

Other factors 

 

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, authorities may 

consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation or 

response to climate change.  These factors alone would not warrant making an Order.  

 

5. Officers Observations 

 

5.1 The tree that is the subject of the proposed Tree Preservation Order was originally included as 

part of a woodland TPO that was confirmed in 1952.  Although it has not been possible to find 

the actual order, there is sufficient documented evidence relating to the presence of the Tree 

Preservation Order to be satisfied that the order remains extant and in force.  Notwithstanding 

this, the Planning Inspectorate has maintained that in order for them to consider an appeal 

against the Council’s decision not to allow the felling of the tree, they need full evidence of the 

TPO.  If members are minded to make this TPO permanent, the appeal against the decision 

can then be determined.   

 

5.2 Although the tree forms part of a small woodland it can be seen from local roads and the 

Council’s Arboricultural and Conservation Officer is satisfied that the tree has amenity value.  

The tree is not in poor condition and it is not causing structural damage to property.  There is 

no reason why a woodland TPO cannot extend into a garden.   

 

5.3 Although the tree could be reducing light into the properties, the adjacent woodland would also 

reduce levels of light reaching these properties.  The Council’s Arboricultural and Conservation 

Officer advises that there are healthy plants growing under the tree in the garden and cannot 

not see why grass in the neighbours garden cannot grow.  The lack of light can be attributed to 

the gardens close proximity to the wooded area as much as to the tree and on her visit to the 

property there was plenty of light in the garden.  

 

5.4 It is recognised that leaves do fall from trees but given the presence of the adjacent woodland 

it is likely that many leaves would also fall from these trees.  Sap may also fall on garden 

paths, potentially making them slippery, but this is not considered a justification for felling a 

healthy tree.  Properties are immediately adjacent to a woodland that would also give rise to 

sap and leaves at certain times of the year that would cause similar issues.   

Page 10



7 
 

 

5.5 There was little evidence of tree roots causing the uneven surface under the tree, the patio 

under the tree had been laid badly many years ago which was just as likely to cause trips.   

 

5.6 The single storey rear extension was designed and constructed with full knowledge of the 

presence of the tree and although the tree can be seen from the extension it does not have an 

impact on the structural integrity of the extension because of the change of levels across the 

garden.  There was no need for the officer to consult the Council’s Arboricultural and 

Conservation Officer since it was not proposed to fell the tree as part of the development of the 

extension.   

 

5.7 This tree is a good specimen having a good shape and form. The tree has been crown-lifted in 

the past leaving a clear stem to a height of about 3.0m above ground level with numerous 

scars. However, despite this it appears to have responded well and has formed a natural and 

well-balanced crown.  The tree also possesses ecological / biodiversity value both in its own 

right and also part of a woodland although members are advised that a trees 

ecological/biodiversity value is not justification (by itself) for making a TPO.   

 

5.8 Although concerns have been raised about over-hanging branches, neither the trees owner or 

the Council have objections to selective pruning being carried out to reduce this problem, but 

pruning must be properly controlled and not undermine the long term viability of the tree.  

 

5.9 Although adjacent to the woodland the tree stands out particularly due to its forward position 

and stature in relation to these neighbouring trees.  The linear group as a whole provides a 

green corridor behind properties and as an important component of this group the tree makes a 

significant contribution to the character and appearance of the area.  For these reasons it is 

considered that the tree justifies protection.   

 

5.10 It is recognised that trees will drop leaves and give rise to sap and some over-shadowing, the 

degree of which can depend on the time of year, however, in this instance it is not considered 

that the nuisance arising from the presence of the tree outweighs the amenity value of this 

healthy tree that has been present for many years.  For these reasons Officers believe that this 

tree a large Sycamore (Acer Pseudoplatanus) is protected by a TPO.   

 

6. Recommendation 

 

6.1 That the Temporary Tree Preservation Order be made permanent.   

 

 

 

  

Page 11



8 
 

Appendix 1  Extract from the original Tree Preservation Order Plan that illustrates the TPO location.   

 

 
 

 

  

Page 12



9 
 

 

 
 

 Extract from later plan produced by Hyndburn Borough council illustrating the extent of TPO 

(W3) after the development of Queen Elizabeth Crescent.   

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 13



10 
 

Appendix 2 Photographs of tree in rear garden.   

 

 
 View of tree in rear garden of 27 Queen Elizabeth Crescent. 

  

Page 14



11 
 

 

 
 

Views of trees from front of property on Queen Elizabeth Crescent 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Terms of Reference
	3 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- New Tree Preservation Order

